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16 October 2012 

 

 

Jack Dowds 

Chief Executive 

South Wairarapa District Council 

PO Box 6 

Martinborough 

 

 

Dear Jack 

 

I am writing to you to let you know about the NZ Transport Agency’s decision to grant 

Fonterra Co-operative Group Ltd a temporary exemption, issued under Section 166(1) of the 

Land Transport Act 1998, from the requirements of the Land Transport Rule - Vehicle 

Dimensions and Mass 2002. The three month exemption will allow Fonterra to exceed the 44 

tonne mass limit by one tonne without an overweight permit.  This remains within the legal 

weighing tolerance of 45.5 tonnes. 

 

This decision follows an application by Fonterra in September. As a result of the current 

exceptionally good grass growing conditions Fonterra is forecasting very high levels of milk 

production this season. While higher levels of production were expected, current levels of 

production are much higher than could have been anticipated a year ago when Fonterra 

would have needed to order the estimated 60-70 additional tanker trucks required to 

transport these unusually high volumes  

 

In approving this exemption the Agency took into account the following factors: 

 the urgency of the request 

 it is a temporary measure to deal with an exceptional situation that was reasonably 

beyond the control of the operator 

 fresh milk is a perishable product and needs to be transported to the factory as soon 

as possible; farmers must continue to milk their cows and the on-farm vats must be 

emptied regularly 

 there would be economic and environmental consequences disposing of surplus milk 

on farms, in the event that additional trucks are not available to take the higher 

volumes 

 there is currently a limited availability of High Productivity Motor Vehicle  (HPMV) 

routes at this time in most dairying areas and there is not enough time to assess and 

issue HPMV permits now that the peak of the season has begun 

 Fonterra’s milk tankers would mostly carry the additional tonne of milk during the 

last part of the journey, being the last farm to the factory, which should reduce the 

impact on the road network. 

 

The Agency has agreed to issue the exemption for the period 1 October - 31 December 2012 

with the following conditions: 

 calibrated equipment is available to ensure drivers can provide a high level of 

confidence that the amount of milk being carried is consistent with the exemption 

 any posted bridge, road and speed restrictions are adhered to 

 safety limits of the truck and trailer are not exceeded 

 Fonterra keep records of the distance travelled by its tankers while in excess of 44 

tonnes 

 Fonterra provides this information to the NZTA as soon as practicable after the end of 

each calendar month 
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The advice we have received from Fonterra is that the exemption has not yet been used, 

either this year or last year.  We will let you know if Fonterra exceeds 44 tonnes on any of 

your roads. 

 

As you will appreciate, this is the second season that this exemption has been issued and 

the NZTA does not intend the granting of this exemption in this manner to become regular 

practice.  As such we will be working with Fonterra to determine how future milk production 

growth and exceptional seasons can be managed using the ordinary mechanisms available to 

us. This might include the use of High Productivity Motor Vehicles, and we would request 

your council’s involvement in this work where local road access in your district may be 

required. 

 

We appreciate your council’s continuing contribution to improving the safe and efficient 

movement of freight. Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns about this 

latest decision.   

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

 

Jenny Chetwynd 

Regional Director 





From:  Dr Jack Dowds - Chief Executive Officer  
Sent: Wednesday, 26 September 2012 1:39 p.m. 
To: Adrienne Staples - Her Worship the Mayor; Councillors 
Subject: additional information on library management system and the library relocation 
 
Good afternoon Mayor and Councillors, 
 
During the September Council meeting Council requested more information on the 
financial and legal implications of the recommendations put to Council in agenda 
items C4 and G2. Agenda item C4 referred to the Wairarapa Library Service – Library 
Management System and Agenda item G2 referred to Martinborough Library 
Relocation. 
 
I provide the requested information as follows: 
 
1.         Agenda item C4 - Wairarapa Library Service – Library Management 
System  
 
Financial implications 
Kotui: 

• Kotui is unbudgeted in 2012/13 so we will have to "borrow" from general 
funds.  

• It is recommended that the expenditure is funded 100% during the 2012/13 
year, as this will be cleaner if amalgamation happens around that time. If on 
amalgamation another lib rary system is adopted at least the funding will be 
settled and we won’t be collecting rates in future years for a system that is no 
longer used.  

• The cost of the system is $50,569. If this was purchased on 1 February we 
would add interest at 3.83% pa $807.  

• This will be completely rate funded as it is a new asset and there are no 
depreciation reserves to cover this.  

• If it is decided to fund over more than 1 year the interest cost will have to be 
recalculated - but it won’t be very significant.  

    Cash Outflow   Rates impact  
Kotui  Cost  2012/13 2013/14  2013/14 2014/15 
Initial Purchase    50,569.00   50,569.00       50,569.00    
Ongoing licence fee    12,866.00     12,866.00    12,866.00   12,866.00  
Interest              807.00    
     = 0.64% = 0.13% 

       

  
 Legal implications: There are no particular legal implications. 
  
  

2. Agenda item G2 – Martinborough Library Relocation 
 
Financial implications  



• SWDC paid for the fitout of the library, the book value as at 30 June was 
$130,834. This will have to be written off as none of the fitout is likely to be 
able to be transferred to  new premises. There is no rates impact of this, but 
it will hit the P & L as a loss probably in 2011/12 as it will be backdated.  

• In terms of the lease, we have not budgeted for the increased cost of a new 
lease. The cost increase will not be known until the new lease is finalised, 
however the unbudgeted portion is likely to be in the order of ($33,000 less 
$18,000) $15,000  

• My recommendation for fitout and relocation costs is to spread them over the 
term of the lease. The difference between this and the Kotui software is that 
it is more difficult to get out of the lease than replace a piece of software.  

• Relocation should be able to be achieved for around $15K, including computer 
and phone costs  

• Fitout costs are completely unknown - the current building fitout costs were 
$199K.  

• Any fitout costs should be recovered over the life of the lease. If the new 
fitout cost, say, $50,000 we could internally fund this but would have to 
recover from rates at about $25K per year plus interest.  

  
  
  Cash Outflow   Rates impact  
            
   Cost  2012/13 2013/14  2013/14 2014/15 
             
New Lease increase      15,000.00   15,000.00   15,000.00    30,000.00   15,000.00  
Reloc ation    15,000.00   15,000.00        7,500.00     7,500.00  
Fitout    50,000.00   50,000.00      25,000.00   25,000.00  
Interest      2,470.00     1,266.67        633.33      1,470.00     1,000.00  
     =0.64% =0.49%  

       

 
 
Legal implications 
 
There are no particular legal implications.  I have spoken with Dianne Phelps and she 
is accepting of Council exiting the lease when a suitable alternative is found. 
 
 
 
If Council are happy with the information provided and inform me of this I will 
initiate the Kotui project with Carterton and commence negotiations with the owner 
of the Reload building. 
 
Regards, 
 
Jack 
 
 
Dr Jack Dowds 
Chief Executive Officer 
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